COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

COUNTY OF MACOUPIN/THE SHERIFF OF MACOUPIN COUNTY

AND

POLICEMEN'S BENEVOLENT LABOR COMMITTEE

REPRESENTING

UNIT A - ALL SHERIFF'S DEPUTIES, CORRECTIONS OFFICERS, ELECOMMUNICATORS, BAILIFFS, OFFICE CLERKS, DEPUTY CLERKS, JANITORS, COOKS, AND MAINTENANCE ENGINEER

AND

UNIT B - CAPTAIN, LIEUTENANT, SERGEANT AND TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERGEANT

9/1/20 - 8/31/23

Table of Contents

Preamble	.7
Article I - Agreement	.7
Section 1. Agreement.	7
Section 2. Recognition.	7
Article II - Management Rights	8
Article III - Union Checkoff	9
Section 1. Dues Deduction	9
Section 2. Religious Exemption	9
Section 3. Indemnification,	9
Article IV - Union Rights	.0
Section 1. Union Representatives	.0
Section 2. Union Representative Duties	.0
Article V - Subcontracting	.0
Section 1. General Policy	.0
Section 2. Notice and Discussion	.0
Article VI - Non-Discrimination	. 1
Section 1. Prohibition Against Discrimination	.1
Section 2. Union Membership or Activity	.1
Section 3. Equal Employment/Affirmative Action	.1
Section 4. Use of Masculine Pronoun	.1
Article VII - Work Stoppage	. 1
Section 1. Statutory Provision	. 1
Section 2. Strike and Lockout Prohibited	ا2

Section 3. Union Action.	12
Section 4. Penalties	12
Article VIII - Personnel Files	12
Section 1. Inspection.	12
Section 2. Union Access.	13
Section 3. Employee Rights	13
Article IX - Discipline and Discharge	13
Section 1. Discipline	13
Section 2. Just Cause	13
Section 3. Limitation.	13
Section 4. Use of Prior Warnings.	14
Section 5. Written Notice.	14
Article X - Dispute Resolution and Grievance Procedure	14
Section 1. Definition of a Grievance.	14
Section 2. Representation.	15
Section 3. Subject Matter.	15
Section 4. Time Limitations	15
Section 5. Investigation.	15
Section 6. Grievance Meetings.	15
Section 7. Steps in grievance procedure	16
Article XI - Seniority/Layoffs/Recalls	17
Section 1. Probation.	17
Section 2. Definitions of Classifications and Seniority.	18
Section 3. Bidding Rights.	22
Section 4. Loss of Seniority.	22

Section 5. Seniority List	. 23
Section 6. Bumping Rights.	. 23
Section 7. Layoffs.	. 23
Section 8. Recalls.	. 23
Article XII - Hours of Work and Overtime	. 23
Section 1. Hours of Work	. 23
Section 2. Overtime.	. 24
Section 3. Court Time	. 25
Section 4. Department Call Outs.	. 25
Section 5. Special Duty Travel Time.	. 25
Article XIII - Vacations	. 25
Section 1. Vacation Leave.	. 25
Section 2. Vacation Pay	. 26
Section 3. Working During Vacation.	. 26
Section 4. Vacation Requests	. 26
Section 5. Vacation Pay Upon Termination.	. 26
Article XIV - Holidays	. 27
Section 1. Paid Holidays	. 27
Section 2. Working on Holidays	. 28
Section 3. Eligibility	. 28
Article XV - Sick Leave	. 28
Section 1. Purpose	. 28
Section 2. Accumulation.	. 29
Section 3. Return to Work.	. 29
Section 4. Sick Leave Abuse Sanctions	. 29

Section 5. Sick Leave Bank	29
Article XVI - Leaves of Absence	30
Section 1. Personal Leaves	30
Section 2. Funeral Leaves.	30
Section 3. Prohibition Against Misuse of Leaves.	31
Article XVII - Unpaid Leaves of Absence	31
Section 1. Criteria for Unpaid Leaves	31
Section 2. Health Leave.	31
Section 3. Educational Leave.	32
Section 4. Military Leave	32
Section 5. Personal Reasons.	32
Section 6. Workers' Compensation.	32
Article XVIII - Group Health Insurance Program	32
Article XIX - Pension Fund	33
Article XX - Wages	34
Section 1. Wages	34
Section 2. Longevity Schedule	34
Section 3. Temporary Upgrade	35
Article XXI - Miscellaneous	35
Section 1. Uniform Allowance.	35
Section 2. Out of Town Travel and Training	36
Section 3. Breaks	36
Section 4. Illness or Emergency On Shift	36
Section 5. Pay Day	37
Section 6. Officer Safety.	37

Section 7. Complaints of Citizens	37
Section 8. Assignment of Cars.	37
Section 9. Vacant Shifts.	37
Section 10. Printing of Agreement	38
Section 11. Bill of Rights	38
Section 12. Indemnification	38
Section 13. Training.	38
Article XXII - Savings Provisions — Partial Invalidity	39
Article XXIII - Complete Agreement	39
Article XXIV - Termination	39
APPENDIX A - GRIEVANCE	41
APPENDIX B - OFFICIAL DUES DEDUCTION FORM	42
APPENDIX C - WAGES	43
APPENDIX D - DEPUTIES ROTATING DAYS OFF SCHEDULE	44

Preamble

This Agreement is entered into by the County Board of Macoupin County and Sheriff of Macoupin County, hereinafter referred to as the Employer, and the Policemen's Benevolent Labor Committee, representing Macoupin County Sheriff's Department PBLC employees, (Unit A and Unit B), hereinafter referred to as the Union, after engaging in collective bargaining pursuant to 5 ILCS 315 (Illinois Public Labor Relations Act) for the purposes of promoting harmonious relations between the Employer and the Union, the establishment of an equitable and peaceful procedure for the resolution of differences, and the establishment of rates of pay, hours of work and other conditions of employment.

Article I - Agreement

Section 1. Agreement.

This Agreement is entered into this 2nd day of August 2021, by and between the County Board and the Sheriff of Macoupin County, Illinois (hereinafter referred to as the "Employer" or "County") and the Policemen's Benevolent Labor Committee, representing Macoupin County Sheriff's Department PBLC employees Unit A and Unit B 'hereinafter referred to as the "Union"), whereby it is understood and agreed as follows.

Section 2. Recognition.

The Employer hereby recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining representative for two separate bargaining units, Unit A and Unit B, as certified in Illinois Labor Relations Board Cases S-RC-08-136 and S-RC-08-138, both of which will utilize this Agreement as their collective bargaining agreement.

The bargaining units are composed of the following classifications:

Unit A: All Sheriff's deputies, corrections officers, telecommunicators, bailiffs, office clerks, deputy clerks, janitors, cooks and maintenance engineer.

Unit B: All full-time sworn peace officers in the ranks of Captain, Lieutenant, Sergeant, and Telecommunications Sergeant employed by the County of Macoupin and the Sheriff of Macoupin County.

Article H Management Rights

Except as specifically limited, by the express provisions of the Agreement, the Sheriff retains all traditional rights to manage and direct the affairs of the Sheriff's Department in all the various aspects and to manage and direct employees, including but not limited to the following: to determine the mission of the department and to set standards of service offered to the public; to plan, direct, control and determine all operations and services of the department; to supervise and direct the working forces; to assign and transfer employees, and to employ employees; to schedule and assign work; to establish performance standards; to assign overtime; to determine the methods, means, organization and number of personnel by which such operations and services shall be provided or purchased to make, alter and enforce various rules, regulations, orders and policies, to evaluate employees; to discipline, suspend, demote and discharge employees for just cause; probationary employees without cause; to uniforms, or facilities, to hire employees and to promote employees; to layoff employees, when necessary; to determine and establish training requirements and qualifications and qualifications for positions with the department; and to establish, change, combine or abolish positions and the job duties of any position in accordance with operational requirements. The Sheriff expressly reserves the right under the agreement to exercise all management rights set forth in Section 4 of the Illinois Public Labor Relations Act. In addition, the Sheriff may establish all requirements, rules, policies, procedures concerning the probationary period for newly hired employees.

The Employer shall not be required to bargain over matters of inherent managerial policy, which shall include such areas of discretion or policy as the functions of the employer, standards of services, its overall budget, the organizational structure and selection of new employees, examination techniques and direction of employees. Employers, however shall be required to bargain collectively with regard to policy matters directly affecting wages, hours and terms and conditions of employment as well as the impact thereon upon request by employee representatives.

To preserve the rights of employers and exclusive representatives which have established collective bargaining relationships or negotiated collective bargaining agreements prior to the effective date of this Act, employers shall be required to bargain collectively with regard to any matter concerning wages, hours or conditions of employment about which they have bargained for and agreed to in a collective bargaining agreement prior to the effective date of this Act.

Article III - Union Checkoff

Section 1. Dues Deduction.

Upon receipt of a signed authorization from an employee in the form provided in Appendix "B" of this Agreement, the Employer shall deduct the amount of Union dues set forth in such form and any increase therein authorized specifically in writing, and shall remit such deductions monthly to the Policemen's Benevolent Labor Committee, 840 South Spring Street, Springfield, Illinois 62704-2618, in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois.

The Union shall advise the Employer of any increases in dues in writing at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to its effective date.

Section 2. Religious Exemption.

Should any employee be unable to pay their contribution to the Union based upon bona fide religious tenets or teachings of a church or religious body of which such employee is a member, such amount equal to their fair share shall be paid to a non-religious charitable organization mutually agreed upon by the employee affected and the Union. If the Union and the employee are unable to agree on the matter, such payments shall be made to a charitable organization from an approved list of charitable organizations. The employee will, on a monthly basis, furnish a written receipt to the Union that such payment has been made.

Section 3. Indemnification.

The Union shall indemnify, defend and hold the Employer harmless against any claim, demand, suit, cost, expense, or any other form of liability, including attorney fees and costs arising from or incurred as a result of any act taken or not taken by the Employer, its officers, agents, employees, and representatives in complying with or carrying out the provisions of this article, or in reliance upon any notice, letter or authorization forwarded to the Employer by the Union pursuant to this article, including any charge that the Employer failed to discharge any duty owed to its employees arising out of the dues deduction procedure.

Article IV - Union Rights

Section 1. Union Representatives.

The Union shall appoint a representative for each classification and shall, in addition, designate a chief representative and provide the names of such individuals to the Employer. Such representatives and chief representative shall, after giving appropriate notice to their the Sheriff or his designee, be allowed reasonable time off with pay, during working hours, to process grievances or to attend negotiations, grievance meetings or other hearings or meeting

called or agreed to by the Employer, if such employees are entitled to attend such meetings by virtue of being Union representatives or the chief representative, and if such attendance does not substantially interfere with the Employer's operations.

Section 2. Union Representative Duties

No local representative shall be laid off, discharged or otherwise disciplined for the responsible fulfillment of their duties and responsibilities as outlined in this agreement.

Article V - Subcontracting

Section 1. General Policy.

It is the general policy of the Employer to continue to utilize employees to perform work for which they are qualified and available to perform, first. The Employer reserves the right to contract out any work that it deems necessary in the interest of efficiency, safety, economy, improved work product, or in the event of any emergency.

Section 2. Notice and Discussion.

Except in case of an emergency, when the Employer contemplates changing its policy involving the subcontracting of work in the bargaining unit area, and such change amounts to a significant deviation from past practice and would result in the layoff of a significant number of bargaining unit employees, the Employer shall notify the Union and offer the Union an opportunity to discuss and participate in considerations involving the desirability of such subcontracting of work, including means by which to minimize the impact of such employees.

Article VI - Non-Discrimination

Section 1. Prohibition Against Discrimination.

Both the Employer and the Union agree to refrain from any acts of discrimination in violation of any state or federal law on the basis of race, sex, creed, religion, color, marital or parental status, age, national origin, political affiliation and/or beliefs, mental or physical handicap, or other non-merit factors.

Section 2. Union Membership or Activity.

Neither the Employer nor the Union shall interfere with the right of employees covered by this Agreement to become or to refrain from becoming members of the Union and there shall be no

discrimination against any such employees because of lawful Union membership or non-membership activities or status.

Section 3. Equal Employment/Affirmative Action.

The parties recognize the Employer's and the Union's obligation to comply with federal and state employment and affirmative action laws, rules and regulations.

Section 4. Use of Masculine Pronoun.

The use of the masculine pronoun in this or any other document is understood to be for clerical convenience only, and it is further understood that the masculine pronoun includes the feminine pronoun as well.

Article VII - Work Stoppage

Section 1. Statutory Provision.

The parties acknowledge that this bargaining unit is a security employees' unit under 5 ILCS 315 (Illinois Public Labor Relations Act), and that the employees of this bargaining unit are prohibited by law from striking.

Section 2. Strike and Lockout Prohibited.

Neither the Union nor any of its officers, agents or county employees will instigate, promote, encourage, sponsor, engage in, or condone any strike, slowdown, concerted work stoppage, sympathy strike, or any other intentional interruption of work during the term of this agreement. The Employer shall not lock out any employees in the bargaining, unit during the term of this agreement.

Section 3. Union Action.

Upon notification by the Employer to the Union or its agents that certain of its members are engaged in activity that is in violation of Article VII, Section 1 of this agreement, the Union shall immediately order such members, in writing, to return to work.

The Union will also provide the Employer with a copy of such order and a responsible official of the Union shall publicly order such workers to return to work. In the event that a strike or other violation not authorized by the Union occurs, the Union agrees to take all reasonable, effective and affirmative action to assure the members return to work as promptly as possible.

Section 4. Penalties.

Any or all employees who have been found to have violated any of the provisions of Article VII may be discharged or otherwise disciplined by the Employer. Such discipline may include loss of compensation, vacation benefits and holiday pay. In an arbitration proceeding involving a breach of this article, the sole question for the arbitrator to determine is whether the employee engaged in prohibited activity. In addition to the penalties provided herein, the Employer may enforce any other legal rights and remedies to which it may be entitled by law.

Article VIII - Personnel Files

Section 1. Inspection.

Upon written request by an employee, the Employer shall permit the employee to inspect his or her personnel file twice per calendar year. Such inspection shall occur within two (2) working days following receipt of the employee's written request. The employee shall not be permitted to remove any part of the personnel file from the premises, but may obtain a copy of any information contained in the file upon payment of a fee for the cost of copying.

Section 2. Union Access.

An employee who is involved in a current grievance against the Employer may designate in writing that a Union representative may inspect his or her personnel file, subject to the procedures contained in Section 1 of this article.

Section 3. Employee Rights.

If any employee disagrees with any information contained in his or her personnel file, the employee may submit a written statement which will be included in the file.

Article IX - Discipline and Discharge

Section 1. Discipline.

Employer agrees with the tenets of corrective and progressive discipline. Disciplinary action shall include only the following:

(a) Oral warning

- (b) Written warning
- (c) Suspension with or without pay
- (d) Demotion
- (e) Discharge

Section 2. Just Cause.

Employer agrees that disciplinary action shall only be imposed for just cause and shall be imposed as soon as practical after Employer learns of the occurrence giving rise to the need for disciplinary action and after Employer has a reasonable opportunity to investigate the facts and arrange a meeting with the employee and the representative.

Section 3. Limitation.

The requirement to use progressive disciplinary action does not prohibit Employer from using severe measure, including discharge, when the offense indicates that a substantial shortcoming or action of an employee rendered the continuation of employment of employee in some way detrimental to Employer.

Such disciplinary actions shall include, but are not limited to:

Possession of a controlled substance or alcohol;

Intentional destruction or theft of county property;

Fighting on the job;

Appearance for work under the influence of drugs or alcohol or other substance that may impair an employee's ability to perform all of the duties required.

Insubordination (refusal to carry out a lawful order)

Sleeping on the job

Both the employee and the Union shall be notified of disciplinary action. Such notification shall be in writing and reflect the specific nature of the offense.

Section 4. Use of Prior Warnings.

Any written warnings or suspensions shall not be considered in imposing a disciplinary penalty for a current offense when more than six (6) months have elapsed from the written warning or suspension, provided however, that an arbitrator or judge review the merits of a discharge case shall review the employee's entire personnel file.

Section 5. Written Notice.

Both the employee and the Union shall be notified of disciplinary action. Such notification shall be in writing and reflect the specific nature of the offense and directions to the employee for future behavior. Employees shall receive notice within five (5) days after meeting with the Employer.

Article X - Dispute Resolution and Grievance Procedure

Section 1. Definition of a Grievance.

A grievance is defined as any unresolved difference, complaint or dispute between the Employer and the Union or any employee regarding the application, meaning or interpretation of this agreement. This grievance procedure is subject to, and shall not conflict with, any provisions of the Illinois Public Labor Relations Act.

Section 2. Representation.

Grievances may be processed by the Union on behalf of an employee or on behalf of a group of employees. The Employer may file contract grievances directly at Step 3. Either party may have the grievant or one (1) grievant representing group grievants present at any step of the grievance procedure, and the employee is entitled to Union representation at each and every step.

Grievances may be filed on behalf of two (2) or more employees only if the same facts, issues and requested remedy apply to all employees in the group.

Section 3. Subject Matter.

Only one (1) subject matter shall be covered in any one (1) grievance. A grievance shall contain a statement of the grievant's position, the article and section of the agreement allegedly violated, the date of the alleged violation, the relief sought, the signature of the grieving employees, and the date.

Section 4. Time Limitations.

Grievances may be withdrawn at any step of the grievance procedure without precedent. Grievances not appealed within the designated time limits will be treated as withdrawn grievances.

The Employer's failure to respond within the time limits shall not find in favor of the grievant, but shall automatically advance the grievance to the next step. Time limits may be extended by mutual agreement.

Section 5. Investigation.

With forty-eight (48) hours notice, the representatives shall be permitted reasonable time at the beginning and end of the workday to investigate established grievances on the Employer's property without loss of pay.

Section 6. Grievance Meeting,

A maximum of two (2) employees (the grievant and the Union representative) per work shift shall be excused from work with pay, to participate in a Step 1 or Step 2 grievance meeting. A maximum of two (2) employees (the grievant and the Union representative) per work shift shall be excused from work with pay, to participate in a Step 2 or Step 3 grievance meeting. The employees shall only be excused for the amount of time reasonably required to present the grievance. The employees shall not be paid for any time during which a grievance meeting occurs outside of the employee's work shift. In the event of a grievance, the employee shall first perform his/her assigned work task and file his/her grievance later.

Section 7. Steps in grievance procedure.

Disputes arising under this agreement shall be resolved as follows:

In the interest of resolving disputes at the earliest possible time, it is agreed that an attempt to resolve a dispute shall be made between the employee and his immediate supervisor. The employee shall make his complaint to his immediate supervisor. The supervisor will notify the employee of the decision within five (5) working days following the day when the complaint was made. Settlements or withdrawals at this step shall not constitute a precedent in the handling of other grievances. In the event of a complaint, the employee shall first complete his assigned work task and complain later.

Step 1. The Union shall prepare a written grievance on a form mutually agreed to, and presented to the Sheriff no later than ten (10) working days (excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays) after the occurrence that gave rise to the grievance. Within five (5) working days after the grievance has been submitted to the sheriff, the sheriff shall meet with the grievant and the Union representative to discuss the grievance and make a good faith attempt to resolve the grievance. The sheriff shall respond in writing to the grievant and the local representative within five (5) working days (excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays) following the meeting. If the resolution of the grievance requires the expenditure of money beyond the available budget funds or is in excess of five hundred dollars (\$500), the grievance shall be referred to Step 2. Grievances otherwise denied by the Sheriff may also be advanced to Step 2.

Step 2. If the grievance is not settled at Step 1, the grievance will be referred, in writing, to the County Board within five (5) working days (excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays) after the decision of the sheriff. Within thirty (30) working days after the grievance has been filed with the Board, the Board shall meet with the Union and the grievant to discuss the grievance and make a good faith effort to resolve the grievance. The Sheriff and the Union will have the right to present evidence and witness testimony including cross examination of witnesses. If the Board fails to respond in writing to the grievant and the Union within five (5) working days (excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays) following the meeting, the grievance will be referred to Step 3.

Step 3. If the grievance is not settled in accordance with the foregoing procedure, the Union may refer the grievance to arbitration within ten (10) working days after receipt of the County's answer in Step 2. The parties, by mutual agreement in writing, may submit more than one (1) grievance to the same arbitrator. The parties shall attempt to agree upon an arbitrator within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of notice of referral. The arbitrator shall be notified of his/her selection by a joint letter from the Employer and the Union. Such letter shall request the arbitrator to set a time and place for the hearing, subject to the availability of the Employer and the Union representatives, and shall be held in the City of Carlinville, Illinois, unless otherwise agreed to. Both parties agree to make a good faith attempt to arrive at a joint statement of facts and issues to be submitted to the arbitrator.

In the event the parties are unable to agree upon an arbitrator within said ten (10) day period, the parties shall immediately request the Illinois Labor Relations Board to submit a panel of seven (7) arbitrators. Either party may reject one entire panel of arbitrators. From an acceptable panel, the arbitrator shall be selected by the alternate striking of names. The party demanding arbitration shall strike the first name, after which the other party shall strike a name. After six (6) names are stricken by this procedure, the remaining person shall be the arbitrator. The arbitrator shall be notified of his selection requesting that a date and time for the hearing, subject to the availability of the County and the Union representatives, be set. All arbitration hearings shall be held in Carlinville, Illinois.

The Employer or Union shall have the right to request the arbitrator to require the presence of witnesses and/or documents. Each party shall bear the expense of its witness. The expenses and fees of the arbitrator and the cost of the hearing room shall be shared equally by the parties. The decision and award of the arbitrator shall be made within forty-five (45) days following the hearing and shall be final and binding on the Employer, the Union and the employee or employees involved. The arbitrator shall have no power to amend, nullify, ignore, add to, or subtract from, the provisions of this agreement.

Article XI - Seniority/Layoffs/Recalls

Section 1. Probation.

- (A) Sworn deputies shall serve a probationary period of six (6) months, provided he or she has successfully completed police officer's training, commonly referred to as PTI. In the event he or she has not successfully completed PTI within the aforementioned six (6) month period, his or her probationary period shall continue until successful completion of PTI.
- (B) Correctional officers shall serve a probationary period of six (6) months, provided he or she has successfully completed, within a six (6) month period, all required training for correctional officers.

 In the event a probationary correctional officer has not successfully completed all required correctional officer's training within six (6) months from the date of his initial employment, his or her probationary period will continue until he successfully completes all correctional training.
- (C) Telecommunicators shall serve a probationary period of six (6) months provided he or she has successfully completed, within a six (6) month period, all required training for telecommunicators. In the event a probationary telecommunicator has not successfully completed all required correctional telecommunicator training within six (6) months from the date of his initial employment, his or her probationary period will continue until he successfully completes all telecommunicator training.
- (D) Crime analysis and clerks shall serve a probationary period of six (6) months.
- (E) Cooks shall serve a probationary period of six (6) months.
- (F) Bailiffs/court security officer shall serve a probationary period of six (6) months.
- (G) Maintenance engineers and janitors shall serve a probationary period of six (6) months.
- (H) During the probationary period, the employee shall be subject to dismissal for any reason without recourse to the grievance procedure. Upon the completion of the probationary period, the employee shall be granted seniority rights from his or her most recent date of hire.
- (I) Probationary employees will be entitled to eight (8) hours of sick leave per month, but cannot start accumulating sick time until after completion of probationary period.

Section 2. Definitions of Classifications and Seniority,

The County of Macoupin/Macoupin County Sheriff and the Policemen's Benevolent Labor Committee, representing the Macoupin County Sheriff's Department Policemen's Benevolent Labor Committee members of two bargaining units, as described here:

<u>Unit A:</u> Road Deputies, Court Security Officers, Correctional Officers, Telecommunicators, Bailiffs, Deputy Clerk, Office Clerk, Janitors, Cooks, Crime Analysts, Maintenance Engineer.

<u>Unit B:</u> Deputy Sergeants, Lieutenants, Captains, Corrections Sergeants and Telecommunications Sergeant.

The parties agree to amend their collective bargaining agreements to clarify the issues of seniority, bidding, promotions, transfers, and special assignment positions:

I. Definitions of Types of Seniority

The following types of seniority are applicable to both bargaining units (except d, which applies only to Command Officers.

- a. County employment seniority: The length of continuous service an employee has been employed full time in any department of Macoupin County.
- b. Department seniority: The length of full-time service an employee has held any position(s), in or out of the PBLC bargaining units, within the Macoupin County Sheriff's Department.
- c. Classification seniority: The length of full-time service an employee has held any of the Policemen's Benevolent Labor Committee bargaining unit general classifications within the Macoupin County Sheriff's Department. General classification seniority applies to both
- bargaining units regardless of rank held.
- d. Rank seniority: The length of time an employee has held a given rank, such as Sergeant, Lieutenant and Captain. When two employees hold the same rank (such as sergeant), the employee who has held the rank longest will have preference when seniority in rank is an issue.

Definitions of Types of General Classifications and Positions within those General Classifications

a. General Classification: The two bargaining units of the Policemen's Benevolent Labor Committee Macoupin County Sheriff's Department are composed of the following general classifications: Road Deputy, Correctional Officer, Telecommunicator, Bailiff, Clerk, Janitor, Maintenance Engineer, and Cook. Positions (including ranking or command positions such as Sergeant, Lieutenant, Captain, etc.) within a general classifications may include but are not limited to the following:

Road Deputy classification includes full time sworn Sheriff's Deputies who hold the following positions, appointments, or ranks: Road Deputies, DARE officer, Investigators, School Resource Officer, Task Force Investigator, K-9 Officer, Sergeants, Lieutenants, Captains, or any other rank below Chief Deputy. It may also include other positions which as of this time have not been created.

Corrections Officer classification includes full time corrections officers, Sergeants, or any other rank below Jail Superintendent. It may also include other positions which as of this time have not been created.

Telecommunicator classification includes full time telecommunicators, telecommunications sergeant and LEADS Coordinator. The telecommunicator

classification may also include other positions which as of this time have not been created.

Bailiff classification includes full time bailiffs and court security officers. The bailiff classification may also include other positions which as of this time have not been created.

Clerk classification includes full time office clerks, deputy clerks, secretaries, and crime analysts. The clerk classification may also include other positions which as of this time have not been created.

Janitors classification includes full time janitors. The janitor classification may also include other positions which as of this time have not been created.

Maintenance engineer classification includes full time maintenance engineers. The maintenance engineers classification may also include other positions which as of this time have not been created.

Cook classification includes full time forty hour cooks and thirty hour cooks. The cook classification may also include other positions which as of this time have not been created.

Special Assignment and Rank Positions

- a. Certain positions of special assignment within the Sheriff's Department general classifications have been filled by appointment of the Sheriff. Existing appointed special assignment positions include the Investigators, DARE officer, Maintenance Engineer, Task Force, School Resource Officer, K-9 Officer, and Crime Analysts. Other special assignment positions which do not exist now may be created from time to time. Time spent in a special assignment counts toward an employee's general classification seniority.
- b. A special assignment position which is vacate by the employee holding that position, or a new special assignment position, shall be filled in accordance with Article XI, Section 3. Any special assignment position vacancy which is within the bargaining units must be first offered by bid, to bargaining unit employees before a new employee is hired for the position.
- c. An employee who vacates a special assignment position (for reason other than discharge) may return to his/her regular general classification position by bidding a shift assignment by general classification seniority. Employees "bumped" by this process may bid their new shift by general classification seniority.

IV. Appointments to Ranking Positions

The following conditions apply to filling prospective ranking positions in all general classifications:

- a. Promotion to sergeant requires at least two years of service in a non-ranking position in the same general classification as the promotion position.
- b. Any promotion to a higher rank within the bargaining units must be progressive from a lower rank (i.e.: in order to be promoted to a lieutenant position, employee must first hold a sergeant position). The exceptions to this are the Chief Deputy and Jail Superintendent positions, which may be filled by appointment from within the bargaining unit without regard to rank or seniority or from outside the bargaining units.
- c. Demotion from a ranking position within the bargaining units may only occur if there is just cause for the demotion. An employee demoted for just cause will be entitled to return to the next lower rank, or in the event of more serious discipline, may be demoted to a non-ranking position.

V. Chief Deputy and Jail Superintendent Promotions Out of Bargaining Unit:

A bargaining unit employee who is promoted from out of the bargaining units to the position of Chief Deputy of Jail Superintendent, and who later returns to the bargaining units for reasons other than termination, shall have his seniority rights impacted in the following manner:

- a. Classification seniority shall cease to accumulate for the period during which any employee holds the Chief Deputy position. Classification seniority which has accumulated prior to the promotion will remain at that level until the employee returns to the bargaining unit, at which time the employee will again begin accruing classification seniority within the bargaining unit.
- b. An employee who is promoted to the Chief Deputy or Jail Superintendent position from the Command Officer's bargaining unit will not be entitled to return to a formerly held rank position (i.e.: Sergeant, Lieutenant, Captain) in the event he is demoted from the Chief Deputy or Jail Superintendent position, if the formerly held rank position has been filled by promoting another employee.

VI. Seniority Applications

Seniority, as defined in I. Definitions of Types of Seniority, will be applied in the following manner, for all bargaining unit members:

- a. Seniority for longevity pay will be based upon departmental seniority.
- b. Seniority for vacation accumulation will be based on total county employment seniority.
- c. Seniority for pension accumulation shall be based on total county employment seniority.
- d. Seniority for shift selection will be based on general classification seniority (for Unit A) or rank seniority (for Unit B).
- e. Seniority for lay-offs will be based on general classification seniority.

VII. Shift Bidding and Transfers

- a. Shift bidding is the selection of a new shift schedule within the employee's general classification or special assignment. Shift bidding may occur once annually during the fiscal year between November 1 and November 15. Annual shift bids will take effect between January 1 and January 7 of each year. Shift bids may occur more often if triggered by a vacancy created within one of the general classification schedules when an employee is promoted to a higher rank, transfers to a different general classification, retires or terminates employment. Shift bids created by vacancies, promotions, etc. will take effect as soon as practical.
 - b. Transfers occur when an employee moves from one general classification to another general classification, or moves into a special assignment position within their present general classification.
 - VIII. Overtime Work Sharing Between Bargaining Units and Within General Classifications
 - a. Employees will be allowed to share in overtime opportunities and extra assignments as part of a Department-wide call-out list for overtime opportunities, subject to the provisions of Article XII Hours of Work and Overtime, Section 2, Overtime, and "b" below.
 - b. Overtime in general classifications will be shared as follows: Uniformed Road Deputies, regardless of rank, will have first opportunity to share overtime on the road; non-uniformed Road Deputies, regardless of rank, will share overtime according to their assignment. All overtime in Corrections will be shared among Corrections employees regardless of rank. All overtime in Telecommunications, Clerk, Janitor, Maintenance Engineer, and Cook general classifications will be shared among the employees in each respective general classification.

Section 3. Bidding Rights.

All full-time employees covered by this Agreement shall have the right to bid, according to Seniority, on Shift Assignments, all vacancies and new positions, if qualified. Qualifications shall be determined by the Employer.

The Employer agrees to post, for ten working days, all vacancies, new positions, special assignments, and job promotions. The posting will include a job description and the qualifications the Employer deems necessary. Qualifications being equal, the most senior bidder will be the successful bidder. Past job performance will be considered in determining qualifications. Employees who successfully bid shall serve a six (6) month trial period. During such trial period, the employee may be returned to his/her former position, without loss of seniority if the employee has exhibited substantial shortcomings in the performance of his/her new duties.

Section 4. Loss of Seniority.

Seniority and the employment relationship shall be terminated if an Employee:

- a. Quits;
- b. Is discharged;
- Is absent from work two (2) consecutive days without notification to and approval by the Employer, unless the employee is unable to notify the Employer because of physical incapacity or other reasonable excuse;
- d. Is laid off for more than eighteen (18) months or fails to report to work within ten (10) working days after having been recalled from layoff;
- e. Fails to report for work at the termination of a leave of absence;
- f. If an employee on a leave of absence for personal health reasons accepts other employment without permission;
- g. If he or she is retired.

Section 5. Seniority List.

The Employer shall post and supply to the Union, an updated seniority list for bargaining unit employees on a current basis.

Section 6. Bumping Rights.

Each contract year between November 1 and November 15 employees with greater seniority within their classification shall notify less senior employee(s) and the Sheriff that he/she will be displacing or bumping fellow employees of lesser seniority from the less senior employee's assigned work schedule. The bumping/new placement work shift schedule will occur January 1 through 7 of the following year wherever the shift change does not create schedule problems.

Section 7. Layoffs.

When the Employer determines that layoffs are necessary, the Employer shall have the sole discretion to determine the number of employees to be laid off. Employees shall be laid off within general classifications in the inverse order of general classification seniority.

Section 8. Recalls.

Employees shall retain recall rights for twenty-four (24) months. If the Employer authorizes that a vacancy be filled, employees on layoff with recall rights shall be recalled by seniority.

Article XII - Hours of Work and Overtime

Section 1. Hours of Work.

Deputies will remain on 8-hour shifts, but will begin rotating days off. (See Appendix D) The work schedule in effect for each other classification on April 1, 2012 will continue. The Sheriff will meet and, if requested to, bargain any schedule changes with the Union prior to making any changes to schedules. The Union shall have the right to bargain over any significant changes to the schedules. Any impasse resulting from such bargaining will be resolved in accordance with Section 14 of the IPLRA.

Employees will be given forty-eight (48) hours notice of temporary shift changes, except in cases of emergencies.

Nothing in the preceding paragraph or in this section shall preclude an employee from voluntarily agreeing to a temporary shift change with less than forty-eight (48) hour notice. The Employer is not required to offer these hours as an overtime shift.

Part-time employees may be used to fill any shifts where all eligible full-time employees have refused the shift. If all part-time employees refuse the shift, the least senior full-time employee will be ordered to fill the shift. Additionally, part-time employees may be utilized to perform prisoner transports (pickups) to and from facilities outside Macoupin County. The Sheriff will make every reasonable effort to schedule prisoner pickups on designated days, and transports will be performed on these days only, unless mitigating factors exist which will require a prisoner pickup sooner. Prisoner pickups on other than designated days will require approval of a supervisor. For the purpose of prisoner pickups, the Sheriff may utilize part-time employees at any time.

Section 2. Overtime.

All employees shall be given equal opportunity for overtime. Overtime is defined as scheduled or incidental. Scheduled overtime is defined as the filling of a shift vacancy created by absence of a full time employee, or any extra shifts created to expand coverage in the schedule. Incidental overtime is defined as overtime occurring in conjunction with an employee's regular duties. Overtime shall be offered to the employees in classification, beginning with the most senior based on general classification seniority. All overtime will be paid at the rate of time and one-half ($1^{-1}/_{2}$). Overtime will be paid for all hours worked beyond the normal work day (8, 10 or 12 hours), or beyond the normal work period of 160 hours in 28 days. If they so desire, employees may elect to take compensatory leave time in lieu of overtime wages, holiday premium pay and vacant shift overtime pay and may accumulate such compensatory time up to **eighty (80)** hours. Compensatory leave time shall be scheduled such that it will not cause the Employer to pay overtime wages to other employees. Compensatory time may be paid to the employee at the end of the fiscal year if the employee

requests payment to be made. Request to use compensatory time may not be made more than ninety (90) days in advance of the dates requested to be off.

Section 3. Court Time.

Employees covered by this agreement required to attend court outside their regularly scheduled work hours shall be compensated for a minimum equivalent to four (4) hours pay at the employee's regular straight time rate. Employees required to file charges outside their regularly scheduled work hours shall be for a minimum of three (3) hours pay at the employee's straight time rate.

Section 4. Department Call Outs.

All employees covered by this Agreement called out to work outside of regularly scheduled work hours shall be compensated for a minimum of two (2) hours at time and one-half (1 $\frac{1}{2}$) the straight time rate. Anything over two (2) hours, the employee shall be compensated for each hour at the rate of time and one-half (1 $\frac{1}{2}$) the straight time rate.

The Employer agrees that all future call-outs will be based on the agreed procedure. Dispatcher call-outs shall be on the basis of seniority for those employees who are regularly scheduled off for the Sheriff's Department on the day of the call-out shift. If no employee who is regularly scheduled off for the Sheriff's Department on the day of the call-out shift accepts the call-out, the call out shall become available, on the basis of seniority, to those employees who physically worked for the Sheriff's Department that day. If no one who physically works accepts the call out, the call out shall become available, on the basis of seniority, to those employees who took off their regularly scheduled day. If no one accepts the call-out, the employee who is lowest in seniority and did not physically work or did not take off vacation, compensatory time, personal leave or sick leave the day of the call-out shall be ordered in. Part time employees shall be offered call out shift before any employee is ordered in for shift. Matron call-outs shall follow the same process as described herein.

Section 5. Special Duty Travel Time.

Off-duty officers assigned to special duty will be compensated for driving time at premium pay rate (1.5X).

Article XIII - Vacations

Section 1. Vacation Leave.

All employees in the bargaining unit shall receive paid vacation leave according to the following schedule:

- (a) 40 hours after one (1) year of service.
- (b) 80 hours after two (2) years of service.
- (c) 88 hours after three (3) years of service.
- (d) 96 hours after four (4) years of service.
- (e) 104 hours after five (5) years of service.
- (f) 112 hours after six (6) years of service.
- (g) 120 hours after seven (7) years of service.
- (h) 128 hours after eight (8) years of service.
- (i) 136 hours after nine (9) years of service.
- (j) 144 hours after ten (10) years of service.
- (k) 152 hours after eleven (11) years of service.
- (I) 160 hours after twelve (12) years of service.
- (m) 200 hours after twenty (20) years of service.

Employees shall be permitted to carry over a maximum of twenty-four (24) hours of vacation time into the following year from which it was earned. Any carryover vacation time must be utilized within the first three (3) months of that calendar year.

Section 2. Vacation Pay.

All vacation leave will be paid at the regular hourly rate and on the basis of eight (8) hours per day.

Section 3. Working During Vacation.

Employees may elect to work while on vacation, if needed by the Employer.

Section 4. Vacation Requests.

Except for an occasional day which is taken as vacation leave, all employees must submit, in writing, to the sheriff, a schedule of desired vacation at least thirty (30) days in advance of the start of the vacation, but not more than forty-five (45) days prior to their anniversary date. Vacation anniversary date for telecommunicators and road deputies will be January 1 each year. Telecommunicators will only be allowed two (2) single day vacation usages during the months of June, July and August. All other vacation leaves will be consecutive days off during these three months. Employees shall be notified within five (5) days if his/her vacation

is approved. At least three (3) days' notice shall be given for one (1) day of leave. Vacation requests of less than three days notice may be allowed if the request does not cause involuntary schedule changes or overtime. The sheriff or his designee shall have the right to alter any schedule if he deems it to be in the best interest of the department to do so to accomplish the work of the bargaining unit.

Section 5. Vacation Pay Upon Termination.

All accumulated vacation time will be pro-rated and paid to an employee upon termination of employment.

Article XIV - Holidays

Section L Paid Holidays.

The following holidays are considered paid holidays for all union employees unless otherwise specified in this section:

New Year's Day
Martin Luther King, Jr.'s Birthday
Lincoln's Birthday
Washington's Birthday (Observed)
Citizenship Day
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day
Columbus Day (Observed)
Election Day (General Election Only)
Veteran's Day (Observed)
Thanksgiving Day
Day Following Thanksgiving
Christmas Day

All bailiffs shall receive the same holidays as the Court House Employees and shall observe their holidays on the same day that the Court House Employees observe their holidays, however premium pay shall not be paid for the two half holidays. Those holidays shall be:

New Year's Day Martin Luther King Jr.'s Day Lincoln's Birthday President's Day Memorial Day Independence Day
Labor Day
Columbus Day
General Election (even numbered years)
Veteran's Day
Thanksgiving Day
Day following Thanksgiving Day
Christmas Eve after 12:30 p.m.
Christmas Day
New Year's Eve After 12:30 p.m.

When a holiday falls on an employee's regularly scheduled day off, such employee shall be paid eight straight time hours for that day, except probationary employees. The parties understand that such paid time is not to be pyramided for purposes of overtime, but is compensation for a paid holiday. Employees working a 10 or 12 hour shift shall only receive the eight (8) hours for holidays.

Any employee, who is scheduled to work a holiday and wishes to take the holiday off, shall submit a request for time off slip to their supervisor. If approved, the Sheriff shall allow the employee to earn and utilize eight (8) hours of holiday pay as compensation for a holiday not worked. If the employee is scheduled to work more than eight hours, they must supplement their holiday off with other benefit time (compensatory or vacation, not sick time) to make up the difference. Employees who utilize sick time on a scheduled holiday shall not be eligible to earn any holiday time for that day.

(The Grievants shall receive pay for the Holiday time. The Union will withdraw all related pending grievances)

Section 2. Working on Holidays.

Employees working on a paid holiday shall receive double time and one-half for work performed on a listed holiday. The parties understand that this amount reflects time and one-half $(1^1/2)$ holiday pay for actual hours worked, added to regular pay.

Section 3. Eligibility.

In order to receive holiday pay, an employee must work the employee's last scheduled day before and the next scheduled day after the holiday, unless such employee is absent for work with the approval of the sheriff.

Article XV - Sick Leave

Section 1. Purpose.

For the purpose of this section, sick leave may be used for illness, disability or injury of the employee; his/her family appointments with doctors, dentists, or other recognized practitioners; non job-related injury for which the employee is under a doctor's care; quarantine because of communicable disease in the family of the employee; or to cover the first three (3) days' absence due to a job-related injury. Family is defined as spouse, children, parents, grandparents, grandchildren, or any other person for whom the employee is legal guardian.

Section 2. Accumulation.

Bargaining unit employees will accrue sick days at the rate of eight hours per month. A new employee will accumulate sick leave after completion of the probationary period. Sick leave may not be utilized until it has been earned. Sick leave will normally be utilized in increments of four hours or more; however, less time may be utilized with approval of the Sheriff or his designee.

Employees will be allowed to accumulate up to two thousand eighty (2080) hours of sick leave, of which fourteen hundred and forty (1440) hours may be utilized for non-duty illness or injury. Upon separation from service, all accumulated sick leave may be converted to IMRF pension credit in accordance with IMRF guidelines, if the employee so elects. In addition, any employee hired prior to January 1, 2005 shall be eligible for sick leave buyback at separation of service, up to six hundred forty hours (640) of accumulated time. Any accumulated sick leave beyond six hundred forty hours (640) shall be credited to IMRF pension, in accordance with IMRF guidelines.

Section 3. Return to Work.

If any employee is absent from work because of illness or non-industrial accident for more than two (2) days, upon the employee's return to work, such employee may be required by the sheriff, to present a certification signed by a licensed physician in order to qualify for sick leave benefits.

Section 4. Sick Leave Abuse Sanctions.

For the purpose of the provisions contained in this article, abuse of sick leave is the utilization of such for reasons other than those stated in Section 1 of this Article.

Upon sufficient evidence of the abuse of such sick leave, the employee shall not be paid for such leave taken, nor shall the employee accrue any rights such as seniority or other rights.

Continues abuse of sick leave shall subject the employee to disciplinary action pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

Section 5. Sick Leave Bank

Participation in the sick leave bank is voluntary on the part of any employee. Employees wishing to participate must be permanent full-time employees with a minimum of twelve (12) months of service.

A participating employee may deposit into the sick leave bank as much accrued sick leave as desired, provided that the participating employee shall retain in his or her own account at least five (5) sick days.

Employees may voluntarily enroll at any time. Employees shall wait sixty (60) calendar days after enrollment before utilizing the sick leave bank.

An employee may use up to twenty-five (25) work days from the sick leave bank per twelve (12) month period, except that participating employees shall not use sick leave accumulated in the sick leave bank until all of their accrued vacation, personal days, sick leave and compensatory time have been used.

Any sick leave in the sick leave bank shall be only for the personal catastrophic illness or injury of the employee and may not be transferred, returned or used for any other purpose.

Injuries and illnesses that are compensable under the Workers' Compensation act or Workers' Occupational Disease Act shall not be eligible for sick leave bank use.

Article XVI - Leaves of Absence

Section 1. Personal Leaves.

Each year, thirty-two (32) hours with full pay may be used by the employee for personal leave for the purpose of attending to personal, legal, household, or family matters that require absence during working hours. New employees will receive a pro-rata allowance of personal leave at eight (8) hours for each three (3) months remaining in the fiscal year. Except in emergencies, the employee shall request such leave on a form provided by the Employer, processed by the sheriff, at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the day to be taken but not more than ninety (90) days in advance of the day to be taken off. Personal leave must be accumulated before it may be requested.

Section 2. Funeral Leaves.

- a. If a death occurs in the immediate family of an employee, a maximum of twenty-four work hours of special leave will be allowed that employee at full pay. Such days will not be charged to vacation or sick leave. If it is necessary that the employee be absent from work for more than twenty-four work hours, such employee will be paid for time in excess of twenty-four work hours from compensatory time, personal, vacation or sick leave.
- b. For the purpose of this section, immediate family is defined as the spouse, son, daughter, brother, sister, mother, father, mother-in-law, father-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, grandparents, and grandchildren (including step family members) of the employee, or relative for whom the employee is the legal guardian.
- c. Evidence satisfactory to the Sheriff must be presented as to the death and relationship to the employee.

Section 3. Prohibition Against Misuse of Leaves.

Any leaves granted pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, regardless of with or without pay, under Article XVI or XVII, shall not be used for the purpose of securing other employment. An employee, during such leave, may not be gainfully employed or independently self-employed without prior approval of the Employer. Violation of the provisions contained within this agreement shall subject the employee to immediate discharge and loss of all benefits and rights accrued pursuant to the terms of this agreement.

Article XVII - Unpaid Leaves of Absence

Section 1. Criteria for Unpaid Leaves.

Leaves of absence without pay may be granted for health, educational, personal, or military reserve purposes. Leaves of absence may only be granted by the sheriff. Leaves may be granted with the following understanding between the employer and the employees:

Whether the position is held open is a determination to be made by the Sheriff. In cases where the position is held open, the position may be filled with a temporary employee. In cases where the position is not held open, employees on leave wishing to return will be considered for the first position open of the like pay and classification.

During the Leave of Absence, an employee does not accrue credit for benefits.

Section 2. Health Leave.

The sheriff may grant a Health Leave to employees with six (6) months of service or more. The employee must present a written statement from a licensed physician to the sheriff, stating the need for such leave. The length of the leave will be determined by the physician's recommendation. The maximum period of time a Health Leave will be granted is for one (1) year. Employee returning to work from a Health Leave must present a written release from their physician.

Section 3. Educational Leave.

An educational leave may be granted by the sheriff to employees with six (6) months of service when the education program is of mutual benefit to both the county and the employee. The length of leave will be determined in accordance with the type of program attended. (Educational Leave should not be confused with Education Benefits).

Section 4. Military Leave.

Military leave shall be granted in accordance with State and Federal law.

Section 5. Personal Reasons.

A leave of absence may be granted by the sheriff to employees who have six (6) months of service for personal reasons in nature (i.e. illness in family, marital problems, etc.). The length of the leave will not exceed six (6) months.

Section 6. Workers' Compensation.

A leave of absence conforming to applicable state regulations shall be granted by the sheriff to employees who have been injured while performing their work assignment for the county.

Article XVIII - Group Health Insurance Program

Bargaining unit employees will pay ten percent (10%) of the cost of the employee health and dental premium per month. A Cost Containment Committee shall be formed made up of designated employer representatives and up to two (2) bargaining unit members from each union that elects to participate in the committee. Such committee members shall receive regular updates regarding insurance costs, coverages, and trends provided to them by the employers as they become available. When meetings of the committee are needed, and such meetings are held during normal working hours, members shall suffer no loss of pay or benefits while attending such meetings. If such meetings are held after normal working hours, members shall receive the same stipend count board members receive.

Effective 9/1/18, the employee's share of the individual monthly premium shall remain at fifty eight dollars and sixty two cents (\$58.62) for Health coverage, and three dollars and thirty eight cents (\$3.38) for Dental coverage.

In the event that plan changes are required as a result of the enactment provisions under the Affordable Care Act, the parties will meet to review such changes and bargain the same upon request of either party.

If the employers provide less expensive insurance premiums to any other group of county employees (union or non-union) the less expensive rate will be passed along to the members of this bargaining unit.

The employees may elect to purchase dependent coverage through the group plan, but the County will not contribute toward the payment for dependent coverage. Retirees with eight (8) years or more of continuous service and employed at the time of retirement may purchase health insurance coverage through the County's group plan for as long as they desire, provided there is no additional cost to the Employer. If any other group of County employees received paid retiree's health insurance paid for by the Employer, the Employer will also provide paid retiree's health insurance to retirees of this bargaining unit on the same terms and conditions. This excludes those employees over which the Employer has no control.

Article XIX - Pension Fund

To be eligible to participate in the pension fund, bargaining unit members must satisfy the following criteria as established by the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), which administers the fund:

- a. Work full-time in the office of the sheriff (full-time is determined by local personnel policies — usually thirty-five (35) to forty (40) hours per week, fifty two (52) weeks a year);
- b. Be appointed by the sheriff. Said appointment must be in writing and must be signed by the sheriff;
- c. Take an oath or affirmation in the same form as required of the sheriff. This form is to be filed in the office of the county clerk;
- d. The appointment cannot exceed the number of appointments allowed by the county board;
- e. Must be certified by the merit commission, if a merit commission exists, as qualified for appointment;
- f. Never have been classified as a conscientious objector by a local selective service draft board; and
- g. Must be a U.S. Citizen.

Bargaining unit members satisfying the above-referenced criteria, when applicable, must be enrolled in the SLEP Pension Plan. Those bargaining unit members who do not meet this criteria are prohibited from inclusion. Part-time auxiliary or special deputies are not eligible to participate in the fund.

Article XX - Wages

Section 1. Wages.

The wages to become effective during the term of this agreement shall be as follows:

Effective 9/1/2020, all employees will receive two percent (2%) added to base pay. Effective 9/1/2021, all employees will receive two percent (2%) added to base pay. Effective 9/1/2022, all employees will receive two percent (2%) added to base pay. Wage scales are attached as Appendix C.

Wages will be paid on all hours worked or paid as if worked. Retroactive wages shall be paid to all bargaining unit employees on the payroll from 9/1/2020 until present, including those employees employed during that period but no longer employed at present.

Effective upon execution, All new employees (except clerical) shall be hired at a rate of ten percent (10%) below their base classification rate for a period of one (1) year. At the end of one year, employees shall be paid the negotiated rate for their classification.

Overtime rate for all employees except the 30 Hour Cook will be computed on the basis of two thousand eighty (2080) hours per year.

The starting rate of pay for new probationary clerical employees shall be \$23,000 per year. Upon completion of the probationary period, clerical employee base wage rate shall be \$24,000 per year. These salaries shall be adjusted annually by the negotiated percentage for each contract year, regardless if an employee has been hired into that position.

Section 2. Longevity Schedule.

The longevity incremental increases for all the employees covered under this agreement is set forth below:

New Hires — During the 1st 12 months will be paid \$150 per month less than base rate.

```
0-5 years — no increase
5-10 years — 1% increase
10-15 years — 2% increase
15-20 years — 3% increase
After 20 years — 2% increase
```

If any other group of County employees receives longevity steps paid for by the Employer beyond those depicted in this Agreement, then the Employer will also provide those same increased longevity steps to the employees of this bargaining unit. This excludes those employees over which the Employer has no control.

Section 3. Temporary Upgrade

The Employer may temporarily assign an employee to perform the duties of another position classification, or rank. If an employee is temporarily assigned to a position or rank higher than the employee's normal position classification for a period of two (2) consecutive entire pay periods or longer, the employee shall be paid as if he or she had received a promotion into said higher position or rank retroactive to the first day of such assignment.

When an officer is required to assume the duties and responsibilities of a rank higher than that which he normally holds for any accumulated total of at least six months in a calendar year, he shall be paid the rate for the higher rank for his vacation period with any necessary adjustments to be made at the end of a calendar year.

Article XXI - Miscellaneous

Section 1. Uniform Allowance.

All employees, except cooks and janitor staff, will be allowed a uniform allowance of four hundred dollars (\$400) per year.

The janitorial staff and cooks, including the maintenance engineer shall receive a two hundred seventy-five dollar (\$275) uniform allowance per year.

The Employer shall issue to new employees in telecommunications, corrections and deputy classification, two (2) start-up uniforms (two pants, two in-season shirts) in addition to the four hundred dollars (\$400) per year uniform allowance, then a four hundred dollar (\$400) per year allowance for each year of employment thereafter.

The Employer's fiscal year is September 1 through August 31. The uniform allowance shall be pro-rated according to the quarter of the fiscal year during which the employee is hired. All bills for uniforms must be turned in to the Employer by July 31 of each fiscal year in order for payment to be made before the end of the fiscal year.

The Employer shall supply 1 ballistic vest for all employees in the deputy classification. All road deputies must wear vest while on duty. Vests will be replaced in accordance with manufacturer's warranty.

All purchases made under this provision will be made through the sheriff's office and with the sheriff's approval.

Section 2. Out of Town Travel and Training.

Employees attending to duly related business (Crime Lab, court, inquests, classes, etc.) that is outside of Macoupin County, shall be provided a squad car for such travel. If a squad car is

unavailable and a private vehicle is used, employees shall receive mileage at the IRS rate per mile for the trip. Employees will be paid for travel time. If such travel is outside a reasonable commuting distance, employees will be provided with room and board. When correctional officers are required to guard patients or inmates out of county facilities and use their own vehicles, they shall be compensated at the IRS mileage rate.

Employees who attend non-mandatory classes and must travel to the class, will be paid in compensatory time at straight time for the time in class and during travel, and will be allowed to use a County vehicle, or will be paid the IRS mileage rate for use of their personal vehicle. Attendance must be approved in advance by the Employer.

Section 3. Breaks.

All employees covered by this Agreement shall receive a thirty (30) minute dinner break which shall be taken when duty allows. In addition, two (2) breaks of twenty (20) minutes each shall be allowed. Telecommunicators shall schedule their breaks to allow no fewer than two (2) telecommunicators in the dispatch center at all times.

Section 4. Illness or Emergency On Shift.

If an employee works over one-half (1/2) of the shift and is excused from completing the shift due to illness or emergency, he shall receive pay for actual time worked.

Section 5. Pay Day.

The Employer shall pay employees twice per month on the 15th and the 30th of each month. Overtime 36 pay will be paid separately on the 15th.

Section 6. Officer Safety.

- a. No officer shall be required to drive an unsafe vehicle or one that has insufficient radio equipment.
- b. All squad cars shall be equipped with a proper first aid kit and Fire Extinguisher.
- c. Unsafe, damaged or missing equipment shall be reported in writing to a representative and the sheriff. A return letter shall be sent through the representative advising the officer of action taken.
- d. For the safety of officers on the streets, there shall be no fewer than two (2) officers on duty per shift; there shall be no fewer than two (2) corrections officers on duty per shift and two (2) telecommunicators working in the dispatch center at all times.

Section 7. Complaints of Citizens.

Grievances on officers by citizens shall be in writing and signed by the complainant and all witnesses. The complaint shall be filed as a sworn affidavit where U.P.O.D.A. applies. Any hearing shall be conducted with the sheriff, the officer(s) and the representative.

Section 8. Assignment of Cars.

Assignment of squad cars to deputies and investigators shall be continued in accordance with past practice.

Section 9. Vacant Shifts.

If at any time a vacant shift has to be filled on the road, it will be first offered to a full-time, off-duty deputy. If at any time a vacant shift has to be filled in the jail, it will be first offered to a full-time, off-duty jailer. In both instances, the vacancies will be filled by off-duty personnel by seniority rotation from the availability list. Off-duty court security officers may be offered overtime in the jail after all full-time off-duty correctional officers have been offered the shift and declined, whenever a third correctional officer is scheduled to work. Hospital duty will be offered equally among road deputies, corrections officers and bailiffs by seniority.

If no off-duty employee accepts the shift vacancy, the Employer will then offer the vacant shift to an onduty employee, by seniority.

Vacant shifts in the Courthouse (bailiff/court security vacancies) may be offered as overtime equally among all road deputies and correctional officers, by seniority if all court security and bailiffs decline.

Section 10. Printing of Agreement.

The Union shall be responsible for the printing or necessary copies of this agreement. The Union shall distribute one (1) copy to each bargaining unit employee covered by this agreement and shall also provide a copy to each new bargaining unit employee, regardless of Union membership or status, upon employment.

Section 11. Bill of Rights.

If the inquiry, investigation, questioning, or interrogation of an employee could result in the recommendation of some action, such as a transfer, suspension, dismissal, loss of pay, reassignment, or other similar action which would be considered a punitive measure, then before taking such action, the Employer shall follow the procedures set forth in 50 ILCS 725/1. The employee may be relieved of duty pending formal hearing and shall receive all ordinary pay and benefits as he would have if he were not charged. The employee shall have the right to be represented at such inquiries, investigations or interrogations by a Union representative.

Section 12. Indemnification.

The Employer agrees to comply with and be bound by the local government and Governmental Employees Tort Immunity Act (Illinois Revised Statutes, 1989, Chapter 83, paragraph 1 through 101, et.seq. And Illinois Revised Statutes, 1989, Chapter 34, paragraph 5 through 1001), which requires the Employer to indemnify deputy sheriff's in the performance of their duties.

Section 13. Training.

All Telecommunicators shall receive and be certified in Emergency Medical Dispatching and maintain any required re-certification(s) as required by law or the issuing organization of said certification.

All telecommunicators shall receive and be certified in CPR and maintain any required recertification(s) as required by law or the issuing organization of said certification.

All telecommunicators shall receive any training not listed herein, which, by law, requires the telecommunicator to be certified or trained, in order to carry out the duties of a 9-1-1 dispatcher.

Article XXII - Savings Provisions - Partial Invalidity

If any provision of this agreement should be rendered or declared invalid and unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction or by reason of any existing or subsequently enacted legislation, the remaining parts or portions of this agreement shall remain in full force and effect and the parties agree immediately to negotiate alternative language to substitute for the invalidated provision.

Article XXIII Complete Agreement

The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which preceded this agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining. The understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this agreement.

Article XXIV - Termination

This agreement shall be effective upon ratification, and expires August 31, 2023. It shall be automatically renewed from year to year thereafter, unless either party shall notify the other, in writing, sixty (60) days prior to the anniversary date that it desires to modify this agreement. This agreement shall remain in full force and be effective during the period of negotiations and until notice of termination of this agreement is provided to the other party in the manner set forth in the following paragraph:

In the event that either party desires to terminate this Agreement, written notice must be given to the other party not less than ten (10) days prior to the desired termination date, which shall not be before the anniversary date set forth in the preceding paragraph.

For the Employers:

Pay Schools

Inches The Union

Jan Schools

Jans Mlaythi

In witness whereof, the parties hereto have set their hands this 2nd day of August, 2021.

APPENDIX A - GRIEVANCE GRIEVANCE

(use additional sheets where necessary)

Date Filed:

Department:	epartment: Date Filed:			
Grievant's Name:				
La	ast	First	M.I.	
		STEP ON	NE	
Date of incident or Date kn	new of Facts Givin	ng Rise to Gr	ievance:	
Article(s) and Section(s) of				
Briefly state the facts:				
Remedy Sought:				
				Given To:
	Dat	ic/1 iiiic		
Grievant's	Signature		PBLC Representativ	 e Signature
	EMPLOY	ER STEP OF	NE RESPONSE	
				-
			D	
Employer Representativ	e Signature		Position	
Person to Whom Resp	onse given		Date	
Î	-	STEP TW	VO.	
Reason for Advancing Grie	evance:			
Q:				
Given To:		Date/Ti	ime:	
Grievant's Signatu			PBLC Representative	Signatura
Glievalli s Sigliatu		R'S STEP T	WO RESPONSE	e Signature
	·			
Grievant's Signatu	re		Position	

Appendix B



Membership Information

PBLC • 840 S. Spring St., Suite A • Springfield, IL 62704 217-523-5141 • www.pbpa.org

LABOR COMMITTEE 217-323-3141 ● WWW.pppe

Please Print Legibly		
Name:		
Address:		
City:	State:	Zip:
Home/Cell Phone:	Work P	hone:
Email (non-work):		
Employer:		
Job Title:		
Membership and Dues Authorization		
I hereby authorize the Policemen's Benevolohargaining representative in collective bargaremployment with my employer. My membership to the Union's Termination of Membership projoin in signing a card this card can be used ing representative without an election. I undo Union to protect my employment rights and acknowledge that Union membership is requirense Plan coverage for critical incidents, internidescribed in the Legal Defense Plan Documents.	aining over wages, h hip in the Union shall ocedure.* I understar to obtain certificatior erstand and acknow d to represent me in ired for me to be eligib al investigations, disc	ours, and other terms and conditions of be continuous unless resigned pursuant of that when a majority of my co-workers of the Union as our exclusive bargain- ledge that this membership allows the such matters. I further understand and le for member benefits including Legal De-
I hereby voluntarily authorize the regular mor by the Union and direct my employer to for dues shall be deducted each pay period and	ward those amounts	to the Union in a timely manner. Such
Signature:		Date:

IRS Disclaimer: Payments to the Union may be tax deductible as ordinary and necessary business expenses, however, they are not deductible as charitable donations for federal income tax purposes. Telephone Consumer Protection Act Statement: By providing my cell phone number, I understand that the Union and its affiliates may use automated calling technologies and/or text message me on my cell phone on a periodic basis, and that I can unsubscribe from these messages. The Union will never charge for text message alerts; carrier message and data rates may apply to such texts. The Union will never sell your information or release it to any 3rd party for commercial purposes.

Submit a copy of this form to: PBLC (via email at office@pbpa.org; Fax: 217-523-7677; or mail at address above); Payroll; and Unit Leadership.

^{*}See www.pbpa.org for further detail.

^{**}See www.pbpa.org to view the plan document.

Appendix C

		2.00%	1.00%	2.00%	3.00%	2.00%
9/1/2020 (2% increase)	Old Base	New Base	5 YRS	10 YRS	15 YRS	20 YRS
Deputy	\$53,994.00	\$55,073.88	\$55,624.62	\$56,737.11	\$58,439.23	\$59,608.01
Deputy Sergeant	\$57,776.24	\$58,931.77	\$59,521.08	\$60,711.51	\$62,532.85	\$63,783.51
Deputy Lieutenant	\$58,333.89	\$59,500.56	\$60,095.57	\$61,297.48	\$63,136.41	\$64,399.13
Deputy Captain	\$59,182.47	\$60,366.12	\$60,969.78	\$62,189.17	\$64,054.85	\$65,335.95
TC	\$49,363.17	\$50,350.44	\$50,853.94	\$51,871.02	\$53,427.15	\$54,495.69
TC Sergeant	\$52,199.85	\$53,243.85	\$53,776.29	\$54,851.82	\$56,497.37	\$57,627.32
СО	\$49,605.15	\$50,597.25	\$51,103.22	\$52,125.29	\$53,689.05	\$54,762.83
CO Sergeant	\$52,455.74	\$53,504.85	\$54,039.90	\$55,120.70	\$56,774.32	\$57,909.80
CO Lieutenant	\$53,013.38	\$54,073.65	\$54,614.38	\$55,706.67	\$57,377.87	\$58,525.43
Court Security	\$51,884.66	\$52,922.36	\$53,451.58	\$54,520.61	\$56,156.23	\$57,279.36
Janitor	\$41,289.52	\$42,115.31	\$42,536.47	\$43,387.20	\$44,688.81	\$45,582.59
Maintenance Engineer	\$48,951.01	\$49,930.03	\$50,429.33	\$51,437.91	\$52,981.05	\$54,040.67
Clerk	\$26,809.57	\$27,345.76	\$27,619.22	\$28,171.60	\$29,016.75	\$29,597.08
Cook	\$37,264.83	\$38,010.13	\$38,390.23	\$39,158.03	\$40,332.77	\$41,139.43
30 Hour Cook	\$27,398.15	\$27,946.12	\$28,225.58	\$28,790.09	\$29,653.79	\$30,246.87

		2.00%	1.00%	2.00%	3.00%	2.00%
9/1/2021 (2% increase)	Old Base	New Base	5 YRS	10 YRS	15 YRS	20 YRS
Deputy	\$55,073.88	\$56,175.36	\$56,737.11	\$57,871.86	\$59,608.01	\$60,800.17
Deputy Sergeant	\$58,931.77	\$60,110.40	\$60,711.51	\$61,925.74	\$63,783.51	\$65,059.18
Deputy Lieutenant	\$59,500.56	\$60,690.57	\$61,297.48	\$62,523.43	\$64,399.13	\$65,687.12
Deputy Captain	\$60,366.12	\$61,573.44	\$62,189.17	\$63,432.96	\$65,335.95	\$66,642.66
TC	\$50,350.44	\$51,357.44	\$51,871.02	\$52,908.44	\$54,495.69	\$55,585.61
TC Sergeant	\$53,243.85	\$54,308.73	\$54,851.82	\$55,948.85	\$57,627.32	\$58,779.86
СО	\$50,597.25	\$51,609.20	\$52,125.29	\$53,167.79	\$54,762.83	\$55,858.08
CO Sergeant	\$53,504.85	\$54,574.95	\$55,120.70	\$56,223.11	\$57,909.80	\$59,068.00
CO Lieutenant	\$54,073.65	\$55,155.12	\$55,706.67	\$56,820.81	\$58,525.43	\$59,695.94
Court Security	\$52,922.36	\$53,980.81	\$54,520.61	\$55,611.03	\$57,279.36	\$58,424.94
Janitor	\$42,115.31	\$42,957.62	\$43,387.20	\$44,254.94	\$45,582.59	\$46,494.24
Maintenance Engineer	\$49,930.03	\$50,928.63	\$51,437.91	\$52,466.67	\$54,040.67	\$55,121.49
Clerk	\$27,345.76	\$27,892.67	\$28,171.60	\$28,735.03	\$29,597.08	\$30,189.03
Cook	\$38,010.13	\$38,770.33	\$39,158.03	\$39,941.19	\$41,139.43	\$41,962.22
30 Hour Cook	\$27,946.12	\$28,505.04	\$28,790.09	\$29,365.89	\$30,246.87	\$30,851.81

		2.00%	1.00%	2.00%	3.00%	2.00%
9/1/2022 (2% increase)	Old Base	New Base	5 YRS	10 YRS	15 YRS	20 YRS
Deputy	\$56,175.36	\$57,298.87	\$57,871.86	\$59,029.29	\$60,800.17	\$62,016.18
Deputy Sergeant	\$60,110.40	\$61,312.61	\$61,925.74	\$63,164.25	\$65,059.18	\$66,360.36
Deputy Lieutenant	\$60,690.57	\$61,904.39	\$62,523.43	\$63,773.90	\$65,687.12	\$67,000.86
Deputy Captain	\$61,573.44	\$62,804.91	\$63,432.96	\$64,701.62	\$66,642.66	\$67,975.52
TC	\$51,357.44	\$52,384.59	\$52,908.44	\$53,966.61	\$55,585.61	\$56,697.32
TC Sergeant	\$54,308.73	\$55,394.90	\$55,948.85	\$57,067.83	\$58,779.86	\$59,955.46
СО	\$51,609.20	\$52,641.38	\$53,167.79	\$54,231.15	\$55,858.08	\$56,975.25
CO Sergeant	\$54,574.95	\$55,666.45	\$56,223.11	\$57,347.57	\$59,068.00	\$60,249.36
CO Lieutenant	\$55,155.12	\$56,258.23	\$56,820.81	\$57,957.22	\$59,695.94	\$60,889.86
Court Security	\$53,980.81	\$55,060.42	\$55,611.03	\$56,723.25	\$58,424.94	\$59,593.44
Janitor	\$42,957.62	\$43,816.77	\$44,254.94	\$45,140.04	\$46,494.24	\$47,424.12
Maintenance Engineer	\$50,928.63	\$51,947.20	\$52,466.67	\$53,516.01	\$55,121.49	\$56,223.92
Clerk	\$27,892.67	\$28,450.53	\$28,735.03	\$29,309.73	\$30,189.03	\$30,792.81
Cook	\$38,770.33	\$39,545.73	\$39,941.19	\$40,740.02	\$41,962.22	\$42,801.46
30 Hour Cook	\$28,505.04	\$29,075.14	\$29,365.89	\$29,953.21	\$30,851.81	\$31,468.84

APPENDIX D - DEPUTIES ROTATING DAYS OFF SCHEDULE

SUNDAY	MONDAY	TUESDAY	WEDNESDAY	THURSDAY	FRIDAY	SATURDAY
OFF	OFF	WORK	WORK	WORK	WORK	WORK
WORK	WORK	OFF	OFF	WORK	WORK	WORK
WORK	WORK	WORK	WORK	OFF	OFF	OFF
WORK	WORK	WORK	WORK	WORK	WORK	OFF